
Meeting Minutes
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Wednesday, November 7th, 2018.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member 



Steven Kessler, Board Member




Robert Foley, Board Member 

Jeff Rothfeder, Board Member

Peter Daly, Board Member 

George Kimmerling, Board Member (absent)

ALSO PRESENT:




Michael Cunningham, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney 
 



Michael Preziosi, Deputy Director, DOTS



Chris Kehoe, Deputy Director for Planning


*



*



*
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we will have one change to our agenda. Per the applicant, PB 1-11 the Hanover Estates, we will be pulling that file for tonight and hopefully returning it the agenda for the December meeting. There are some issues that need to be discussed and I think we should be able to move that along by the December date. But we will be removing that later in the agenda. Can I have someone who will make a motion that we pull this from tonight’s meeting?
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 



*



*



*
ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF OCTOBER 2, 2018 
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked may I have a motion for the adoption of the minutes of October 2nd?
So moved, seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question, I have a few I’m submitting.

With all in favor saying "aye". 



*



*



*
CORRESPONDENCE:

PB 4-14       a.
Receive and file a memo from the Town Legal Department regarding extending the time for the Planning Board to render a decision on the Abee Rose application.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated which is a letter from our Town Attorney advising us that we should adjourn this particular file for tonight. There are continuing talks with the applicant. This is the Abee Rose incidentally application, but there are continuing talks and the applicant has granted another month extension.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we receive and file the memo.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

PB 14-13    b.
Letter dated October 18, 2018 from Craig Grybowski, Real Estate Manager requesting an amendment to Planning Board Resolution 33-18 to permit a Redbox machine to be located in front of the Shoprite Store at the Cortlandt Crossing shopping center located at 3140 East Main St. (Cortlandt Boulevard).

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we do have a Resolution for that tonight. Tom?
Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated Madame Chair I’ll move that we adopt Resolution #37-18 granting permission for the Redbox.

Seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question, our concern (or my concern) at the work session, I don’t know if the applicant’s here, was that this is not going to hinder in any way the pedestrian traffic coming out of the store, or the stop’ by cars, the cars pulling up that would be utilizing the Redbox that they not block the lane of traffic.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are there any other issues or comments? I’m in agreement with you on that. I was over there recently visiting the two new open stores: Home Sense and the Supermarket. Quite frankly, maybe because of the rain or mostly because of the rain, I found it very difficult navigating that site. There weren’t any clear signs entrances, exits and whatever so it seemed confusing to me.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it’s still, as you know, under construction so hopefully that’ll help.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I do think that while even though it’s under construction, there should be some level of signage which says “this way in” and “that way out”. Right now it just looks like a maze, or a loop or something. I was a little concerned that with all the rain there could be some problems. 
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated this is the time, when it’s opening, we get some phone calls about traffic issues. We’ve been out there regarding the wetland stream in the back so we can take all of that under advisement and see how it goes the first couple of weeks it’s open.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and if I can weigh in on the same thing. I was going to talk to you later. When you come in, the first curb cut just as you turn in the front of Home Sense to make a right to go to ShopRite. It is very tight because of the oncoming lane, the other way. There’s an issue of the lighting of the cars coming at you. Again, it was at night in front of the store and people coming out with car headlights coming the other way, it’s hard to see pedestrians crossing, from my observation; for what it’s worth. Thank you.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated we’ll talk about it. 

With all in favor saying "aye". 

PB 2018-6  c.
Letter dated October 25, 2018 from Daniel Richmond, Esq. requesting Planning Board review of a correction of lot lines to reflect existing conditions for The Sentinel at Mohegan Lake located at 3441 Lexington Avenue and adjoining parcels located at 3272 E. Main St. and 3262 E. Main St. (Cortlandt Boulevard).

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked Dan could you just explain it, just briefly?
Mr. Dan Richmond responded good evening Madame Chair, members of the board. As you may recall my name is Dan Richmond. I’m with the law firm of Zarin & Steinmetz on behalf of Mohegan Sentinel which, as you recall, was granted site plan approval by your board recently. Our client is in the process of acquiring the property and its lender has essentially asked him to make sure that the title to it is clear. Certain adjoining uses had organically grown over the years onto our client’s property, and through a series of license agreements were allowed to exist. The lender’s no longer interested in that arrangement. Essentially, what we’re asking is to just administratively to allow some lot line adjustments, to allow staff to allow our client to adjust the lot line so that certain improvements that are now on the client’s property are actually the seller’s property will be on the property that they are associated with, namely Brodie’s Pub and there’s a glass store at that location too. We’re talking about very small areas of land; about 4,800 square feet for one of them and 3,200 for the other. Again, it’s just to reflect the existing conditions as they are in the field. I think this is something that came up in some of the staff memos. Along the way they had, I think sort of pointed us in this direction and the lender is sort of in the same position.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we are fine doing it administratively. There’ll be a new map prepared, I believe.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated the changes to the property boundaries descriptions will be merged by deed, filed to the Westchester County Clerk and will have new mapping for our tax administration purposes for our tax parcels and tax maps.

Mr. Robert Foley stated before I make a motion, I wasn’t at the meeting when we voted to approve this and I understand there was no public there to comment, but I hope that the transition from the current residents goes smoothly, and I understand from my experience it will be a long time process.

Mr. Dan Richmond stated yes.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and you know you wouldn’t be accepting any more residents, correct, during this period?

Mr. Dan Richmond responded I can’t speak to that but I think as we’ve discussed during the process, this is all regulated by the state, very strictly regulated so I’m sure the existing residents have a place to live at all times.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and you don’t know whether in the interim, while you’re under construction, you would be bringing in more people in to the existing facility?

Mr. Dan Richmond responded I don’t want to make a representation because I’m not sure of that.

Mr. Robert Foley stated anyway, I have no objection. I make a motion we approve this adjustment by motion.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Dan Richmond stated thank you very much.

PB 25-06    d.
Letter dated October 24, 2018 from Edmond A. Gemmola, R.A. requesting Planning Board approval of a 80’ by 40’ tent and 10’ by 20’ pre-fabricated restroom trailer located at the Monteverde at Oldstone at 28 Bear Mountain Bridge Road.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we do have a Resolution. Is there anybody here from Monteverde? Are you here to comment on this?
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no, she’s the owner.

Ms. Arlene Perrott stated good evening, my name is Arlene Perrott, I own Monteverde at Oldstone. This is our property manager Fernando Velazquez.

Mr. Fernando Velazquez stated good evening.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated good evening.

Ms. Arlene Perrott stated we’re proposing a tent: 40 foot by 80 foot just adjacent to our existing tent which is 60 by 90 on the property at Monteverde.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one issue that came up at the work session is it’s our understanding that the existing tent comes down and is put up each year.

Ms. Arlene Perrott stated it is and that would be the same thing for this tent. New York State Law allows us to have the tent up 180 days.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so language was added to the resolution to make sure that the duration that when the tent is up is clear and that it will be taken down and put up similar to the other one.

Ms. Arlene Perrott stated it will be put up on the same exact day, up and down on the same day.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so they’re both going to be there at the same time and down at the same time?


Ms. Arlene Perrott responded yes, ma’am. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are there any other questions, concerns?

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt Resolution 38-18 in favor of this application.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Ms. Arlene Perrott stated thank you, good evening.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it’s also in the Resolution, as you are aware with the small shed that you do need building permits and you have to work with the office of Code Enforcement. I think your architect is aware of that so there’ll be permits required.

PB 2018-19 e.
Letter dated October 26, 2018 from Lucia Chiocchio, Esq. requesting the Planning Board update the recertification dates in Resolution 39-18 for the recertification of the existing telecommunications facility located at 51 Scenic Drive.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated apparently this is sort of kind of a…
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I made a math error.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt Resolution 39-18.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 



*



*



*
RESOLUTIONS:

PB 2018-9  a. Application of Home Depot Store 1251 located at 3051 E. Main Street for Planning Board approval of temporary outdoor storage areas as described in a letter from James Mandato, Assistant Store Manager, received by the Planning Division on May 23, 2018 and as shown on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Minor Site Plan Application-Proposed Outdoor Sales, Staging and Display Areas” prepared by Stephen J. Powers, P.E. latest revision dated October 12, 2018 (see prior PB 17-06).

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I believe we have a Resolution for that as well.
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt a Resolution 40-18.

Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we need to add a condition to that. We need to add our standard 5% construction inspection fee which shouldn’t be much of a fee on a project like this but we do require that fee. So we’d like that added as a condition. Just one other thing, the Greenberg Farrow, the people that did the drawings on page 2 added a whole list of notes and information that we would like removed from the drawing. It’s not really relevant. You’re going to get a copy of the resolution so are they. The drawings will have to be revised and resubmitted.

Mr. James Mandato stated okay.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so you understand that your approval tonight is based on the conditions that are set forth in the…

Mr. James Mandato stated so my understanding is that we’ll have to go to another meeting now before…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated no, you’re getting approved with conditions and you would just meet the conditions with staff, but one of those conditions will require you to submit revised drawings back to our office. So you’ll have to be dealing with the engineering just for some minor change.

Mr. stated we’ll submit revised drawings.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked do you have any kind of a timeframe for the submission of those drawings, the revised ones?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded I believe, they’re minor revisions. It should only take them a few hours so we should get something, hopefully by the end of the week in reality. They’re very minor in nature.

Mr. James Mandato stated I just wanted to say thank you all again. I know we’ve gone through this a lot of times so I appreciate your time. Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated let’s hope it all works out at this point.

With all in favor saying "aye". 
PB 2018-21   b.
Application of Steve Markham of Carrols Restaurant Group, Inc. for the property of Poughkeepsie Shopping Center, Inc. for amended Site Development Plan approval for a proposed 24’ by 9’ walk-in freezer to be located at the existing Burger King Restaurant at 2040 E. Main St. (Cortlandt Boulevard) as shown on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Burger King 2379-Site Plan” prepared by Lauer-Manguso Architects latest revision dated October 24, 2018. (see prior PB 5-13).

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we have a resolution. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there’s nobody here.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I don’t believe so, and then similar to the Resolution, we need to add the 5% inspection fee to this resolution as well.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated Madame Chair I’ll move that we adopt Resolution #41-18 with the addition of a condition regarding the 5% fee.

Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just also, as you know, the drawings that were originally submitted did not show the change to the access, that especially Mr. Foley wanted. That drawing that is up there now does reflect the change so he’s got to revise his entire drawing set to submit that in more detail and that’s…

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is that in the condition?

Mr. Robert Foley stated I think it’s in condition 2 but is that sufficient in the existing condition 2?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated yes, he showed better turning radius, better turning movement into the site, especially for westbound vehicles turning right or eastbound vehicles trying to enter the site by making a left.

Mr. Robert Foley stated because I was going to say, as long as it’s safe and sound.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated yes, it’s much wider. New drop curb and sidewalk in those locations as well.

With all in favor saying "aye". 



*



*



*
PUBLIC HEARING (NEW):

PB 2018-18   a.
Public Hearing: Application of Jonathan Cruz for the re-approval of an Accessory Apartment located at 1 Lisa Court.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just introduce yourself.
Mr. Jonathan Cruz introduced himself and stated I just bought the house last year. I don’t know what this is about. This is all new for me so I just apologize.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you just came because we called you.

Mr. Jonathan Cruz responded that’s right. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated more or less.

Mr. Jonathan Cruz stated I apologize. I’ve been trying to do this for a while. Chris has been very helpful and I appreciate his help with this. I travel a lot for work and I just came from Mount Laurel in New Jersey.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated as you know that the accessory apartment expires upon the transfer from one property owner to another which is very hard for the new property owner to know a lot of times. Through a variety of reasons usually trying to pull some sort of permit for something from Code Enforcement, it’s caught. It’s sent to you. I completed an inspection. I just want to put on the record that my inspections are solely that what is built is according to the plan. I’m not a Code Enforcement or building official. I’m not inspecting for those purposes but it is as was approved back in the early 1990’s.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you kind of understand this explanation or you have questions?

Mr. Jonathan Cruz responded I do understand it. I’m a first time homebuyer. This was a new experience for me. I wasn’t aware of the process. When I found out after the fact, the conditions, so that it’s a learning experience, but yes I have some familiarity with the situation. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we do have a resolution for your situation. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it is a public hearing too.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anybody here who is going to speak for or against this particular situation? 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I’ll make a motion -- it’s just a one bedroom accessory apartment currently unoccupied, correct?
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it can be occupied by the upstairs residents of the house, and there’s a kitchen and a living room. It’s a full apartment.

Mr. Robert Foley stated so the intention is to rent it as an accessory?

Mr. Jonathan Cruz responded at this point, no. I am actually using one of the rooms for my office, the other room is hopefully going to be a bedroom for myself, but at this point I have no plans to rent it out at all.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make motion to approve Resolution #42-18.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 
Mr. Jonathan Cruz stated thank you for your time.
PB 2018-20   b.
Public Hearing: Application of New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, for the property of Cortlandt Town Center, LLC, for a Special Permit for the co-location of transmission equipment on an existing 140’ tower along with other equipment within the existing fenced enclosure compound located at 3105 E. Main St. (Cortlandt Town Center) as shown on a 16 page set of drawings entitled “Construction Drawings-N-622, Crown Castle Tower” prepared by Nicholas D. Barile, P.E. latest revision dated October 1, 2018.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked do you want to just briefly explain?
Mr. Chris Fisher stated good evening Madame Chair and members of the board. My name is Chris Fisher. I’m with the firm of Cuddy & Fader and I represent the applicant which is AT&T. The tower’s owned by Crown Castle which is a publicly traded tower company. There are two existing wireless carriers that located their facilities on this tower: T-Mobile and Verizon. AT&T is proposing to co-locate, share use of the existing tower facility. As shown on this drawing, they’re going to put antennas on a platform which would be the third carrier down from the top on the tower. Then in the base of the tower, within a fenced compound that’s already existing today, with a fully approved site plan if you will, they will install equipment within the existing compound. All this is connected into the communications network for purposes of wireless and mobile communications on AT&T’s network. The facility itself was previously approved by the town. We’re simply looking to co-locate and we’ve been working with, obviously, Code Enforcement, other departments to make sure that we have the plans in accordance with your requirements under town code.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anybody here who would like to address this particular application? I just have one quick question. How many of these units can you put on one tower? This one is 140 feet. How many – is there any limit to the number that you can put there?

Mr. Chris Fisher responded when a tower is initially designed both for foundation and the structural strength of the monopole, there is a capacity associated with the tower. In this particular instance, the third carrier, and certainly we’re fully compliant with the structural requirements, there can be space for another. It just depends on the original tower design. Your code, and I’m going off of memory, says at least three. Most towers are certainly designed for four or more just based on the tentative needs. You have another carrier in the marketplace, in this case it would be Sprint, that could potentially locate on the facility. So it’s just a question of structural design but we’re certainly the third one in and fully compliant with code.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the code obviously prefers co-locations rather than new towers. We would like more on the tower rather than less.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have a resolution.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we close the public hearing first.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt Resolution 43-18 in favor of this application.

Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked did you have any comments?

Mr. Chris Fisher responded I did if I had just one opportunity. I appreciate the motion. We have one question on, and it was just conditions 3 and 4; we are working closely with the Code Enforcement. We actually submitted a letter. The conditions as drafted, I think we already complied with but we were hoping simply to just be able to work out any additional details with the Building Department. We know we have to comply with code. So the language was pretty specific. I think we addressed it already in a submission we made. I just wanted to ask the board to consider changing those conditions to say that we’ll work with the Building Department and it has to be in compliance with the State Building Code and then obviously the Building Inspector’s got to be satisfied with everything we file. 

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated the conditions 3 and 4 pretty much implying when Mr. Fisher’s asking for so there’s not a real need to change them.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I was just thinking that myself. 

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated that’s the intent of those comments.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated definitely the way we’re organized is, the Code Enforcement office is underneath Mike’s direction so Mike is in charge so we think conditions are fine as is.

Mr. Chris Fisher stated we probably satisfied them then and we just have to work out the details. I appreciate that.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated there’s no real substantive change. It’s just semantics.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s the way I see it. There doesn’t appear to be anybody here to address this application. 

With all in favor saying "aye". 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so you’ll just work it out with the office.

Mr. Chris Fisher stated we certainly will. Have a good evening.
PB 2018-22   c.
Public Hearing: Application of Appian Way Ventures, LLC for amended Site Development Plan approval for 3 proposed chain link fence enclosed dog runs for a tenant, 2nd Chance Rescue, located at the southeast side of the existing building at 260 6th Street as shown on a drawing entitled “Existing Site Plan, Location Map, Zoning Map” prepared by Steven J. Basini, R.A. dated September 4, 2018 (see prior PB’s 7-14 & 5-16). 
Mr. Steven Basini stated good evening. I am Steven Basini of SJB Architects and I’m here representing the clients tonight, 2nd Chance Rescue. I appreciate you having us again. I wanted to start first by saying I believe that the DTS was looking for some information regarding the first Resolution of Approval that you granted last year as far as the water records. I did receive them. I reviewed them today and I’ll forward them to the office tomorrow. Secondly, I believe that you’ve all seen a video that was presented, I think just after the last meeting or before the last meeting. I’ve seen it as well. The owners of 2nd Chance have seen it. I want to start by saying, first off, and not to belittle it in any way because it’s important and it’s actually helpful for this application to go forward. That video was taken apparently in March, and I think I put it in the letter, they only do – you can tell by the leaves and the forsythia bushes that were blooming and the front of the porch over there, it was taken just at the end of the winter. The previous owners that this board had approved to take over that space as a kennel were currently operating out of there. I believe that this board made the right decision on approving that as a use a year ago, a year and a half ago. It’s the right location. It’s obviously a proven location because there’s a tenant down below on the first floor. It’s been operating successfully for years. Unfortunately I think what happened was the previous owners of that business may have disagreed on operating procedures in their culture and unfortunately I think that they had too many dogs. They had about 60-70 dogs at the time. They’re also certain other stipulations that I believe they agreed to originally: sound dampening, things like that, that never took place. I believe that that led to their demise as a business. 2nd Chance Rescue took over that operation, or actually didn’t actually take it over, they are taking over the space. They have started a new culture, a new business in there. That video obviously was offensive. It’s very loud and it shouldn’t be that way. It is not that way now. There’s multiple facets of the business that are in contrast to that previous business. I put some in my letter. I think some of them are worth repeating quickly. One, is the number of dogs. They have about a third of the population of the dogs that the previous business had in there. Over that entire space, it’s a big difference. The dogs are spread out more and just in the sheer volume of any barking that may occur has been diminished because of that. Number two is, they have put sound dampening up. They’ve now put egg crate. They’re continuing to do it always. They’re outside. The employees are outside. They hear what happens from inside and outside. They’re finding the spots; the windows, the doors, the overhead door that’s in the back. They’ve put a sound dampening material over that. They’re putting it on all the walls in the kennel area. They’re really making an effort for the community, for their neighbors and for themselves honestly to dampen the sounds. The fact that there’s less dogs in there to begin with is a reduction in volume. Third, the culture of their business. The previous business was an adoption center, pure and simple. They took the dogs in and they tried to get them out as quickly as possible and that was their business. This is more of an enrichment program that they have in there and I’ll let them speak to you. I have a representative from 2nd Chance who would like to explain it a little further and maybe answer some direct questions from the board, but they have an enrichment program. They promised their sponsors and their donors a certain culture in there, in their business. And even without the yards and the outside that we’re proposing, they have a treadmill inside and they have real life rooms, and they’re trying to enrich the lives of these dogs before they become adopted: try and socialize them better, try to become more used to interacting with other dogs and humans. I think just the whole environment is a lot better. So that, along with the training, the extensive training that their employees get on a regular basis helps to control the dogs in a better way and keep them in a more mild manner. The last thing is, pertaining to the treadmill and the outdoor pens, is exercise. The dogs prior to them did not have any exercise. Those dogs were inside and I guess the adage is, and they can explain it to you is, a tired dog is a – a tired dog is a good dog. A good dog sleeps. A good dog is tired, well behaved. So these pens outside would help to exercise the dogs three or four times a day with continuing operations on the inside. At night, they’re expecting as is now, to be quieter and even more so with these pens outside that would operate all around the year. I believe that those facets of the company are an improvement to over what’s there. I’ve seen the video and I think it really helps to prove the contrast between the two companies. And they do have a concern for their neighbors and the businesses around them. I’m hoping that you’ll see it that way and grant these for those purposes. But I would like to have a representative speak to you real quick if you don’t mind.
Ms. Denise stated hi, my name is Denise and I’m a 2nd Chance Rescue. We’re an organization that has been around for 10 years. Our approach is very different from most rescues and shelters and I don’t like to hear our establishment called a shelter because it’s an enrichment center. What makes us very different from shelters and other rescues is that we have a holistic approach to rescue and I don’t mean that in the potions and medicinal way, I mean that in encompassing a whole. We address medically, a dog’s needs, physically their needs and spiritually their needs. As Steven stated before, we used to board a couple of our dogs over at Westchester K9 Center, the facility that this was, and anytime I pulled up I heard how noisy and poorly run that it was. It was offensive when I would just drop off a dog from our organization there. Shortly after that business did close and then we saw it as an opportunity to take over that space and we learned from that individual did, what not to do with the space. On top of being mindful of the care and our approach of the care of our animals, we’re also mindful about our neighbors and our community. We make sure that we pick up everything. There’s no litter. Everyone’s in uniform. Everyone’s proper. So not only are we being mindful about our animals, we’re mindful with people as well, they’re just as important. When Steven mentions enrichment, what that means to us, and I’ll just give you a few variations of that. We’ve even been mindful down to the kind of music that we play. We play classical music for the dogs. Like Steven stated before, we have gotten the 2 and 3 ¼ inch egg crate sound baffling in the majority, I believe the latter half of the building and working in the middle room right now. We’ve gotten the foil wrap for the garage doors. We have multiple treadmills, not one. We have multiple treadmills. The dogs exercise all day long. This fencing is for their enrichment, is for their wellbeing and it will give us the opportunity to have dogs out there to be more well exercised so when they do go in, they’re more relaxed, they’re not going to be as stressful. They release that energy. They’re getting better manners. What Steven means by the home rooms, the real home environment is that a lot of the rooms that were in there that they used to use as boarding rooms, we’ve turned them into couch, T.V., cabinet to start incorporating these dogs to learn how to live in a house so that when we adopt them out they can transition easier. This isn’t a place where volunteers go there or staffed personnel and they just grab a dog, and they walk it. Everything that’s done from start to finish, from the removal of the animal from the cabins to the kind of walk that they get or the treadmill enrichment or the home rooms, everything is mindful down to even the way they’re put back into their sleeping quarters. As Steven had also mentioned before, Bob’s had a Westchester K9 Center had between 60 and 70 animals there. We have 24 at this time. Some of those are puppies, some of those are poodles, some of those are Labradors, some of those are bully breeds. We don’t discriminate on breed so poodles are welcome and we just look forward to saving as many lives as we can, very mindfully.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you for your comments. Is there anyone here who wants to speak on this application? Okay, come on up and introduce yourself. We need to know your name and your residence. 

Mr. Bernard Calabro stated hi my  name is Bernard Calabro I live at 192 4th Street in Verplanck. My property goes down to Madeline Avenue on the just west side of it. I’m the one that’s having a problem with the barking noise. As it is now, today, left the house tonight there’s barking going on. This morning I walked out the door, there’s barking going on and I hear a foot here from my house on my porch. I even took another video this morning as I was walking out just to bring it with me in case you want to hear it. But, when that bay door is open the volume of the barking is much louder. I know now because of the weather’s cooler, they’re keeping it closed. It’s not as loud. They want to build these pens along Madeline Avenue. I was going to see if you guys would suggest maybe they could do some sort of noise barrier, a solid stockade fence or something where the noise wouldn’t go through the chain link fence that they would be using. Or even in front of the overhead doors when they open them, if they had some sort of noise barrier there that would stop the echo. It’s like a megaphone. It’s so loud it’s unacceptable. As it stands now, there’s definitely I would say, violating of the noise ordinance of the town, as it is the way it is. I was hoping maybe something could be done to alleviate this problem. I know the video that I’ve sent was when I first complained to the town in April. I went down there. There was about 25 dogs there. They had the bay door open because it was so hot in there they had to leave the door open and the poor dogs just miserable in there barking constantly. The barking would go on 15, 20 minutes and it would stop and they start barking again. It’s just all day and at night anytime given during the night the barking; 2 o’clock in the morning. From my understanding there’s no one there. They’re left unattended from 8 o’clock at night until 8 o’clock in the morning. I don’t know what else I can say. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the noise that you’re hearing now, is it the same as the noise you were hearing back in the spring? Same level of noise?

Mr. Bernard Calabro responded no, it’s only – if the bay door is open, if you have foil over the door but if you open the door you don’t have any foil. There’s no sound proofing if the door is open. If I understand you’re saying you have foil…

Ms. Denise stated we don’t open that door [inaudible].

Mr. Bernard Calabro stated it’s been quieter with the door closed but it’s still annoying. It’s still there. Like I said, there’s got to be something done for sound proofing and it’s not fair to – I’ve been in my house for 35 years, I never had a complaint about anything down there until this year.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked I have another question for the applicants. You’re proposing a chain link fence for them, three I guess interconnected?

Mr. Steven Basini responded yes, three. That’s correct.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked my question to you is, are you preparing or can you in any way reduce the sound that would come from them barking or whatever, because it’s a chain link fence. Obviously any noise, or any kind would go straight through the openings and I could still hear it. How does that work?

Mr. Steven Basini responded there wasn’t any proposal for sound, and since you’d also have to cover the top of it as well because then it becomes a structure, you need to maintain snow.

Ms. Denise stated K9 Kindergarten is the doggie daycare next door to us and that’s where our fencing is going to be. I think maybe a lapse of 25 feet between theirs. It’s going to be designed very similarly to what they have and they have that tennis mesh around it. We chose to go that route, for a couple of reasons: we don’t want to bother them as neighbors. We actually have a very good relationship with Lisa Smith who owns K9 Kindergarten, the daycare that’s been there I think 15-20 plus years. We had advised with her and consulted with her about noise and being mindful of her property as well and she found that putting that tennis mesh, the green, you can pick a few different colors whether they’re black or green, I forget what the third one was but that did reduce noise significantly and obviously we don’t want our dogs feeding off of her dogs vice versa, looking at each other and that’s why we also stopped, I think a condenser to one of our neighbors before that little barn so that we wouldn’t get too close. 
Mr. Steven Basini stated I think you were alluding to as well what you currently hear out there because 2nd Chance does not have dogs outside. They have a good reputation obviously. They run a good business for the intention for what they intend to do but they have much more dogs outside all day long than is intended by these three play yards. These three play yards are five dogs per pen at a time exercising for 45 minutes and then going inside, max. There’s 20 to 30 dogs in those kennels outside. It’s a kindergarten. They stay for the day and they go home when they’re meant to exercise and play. In each of those two pens is about 20 to 30 dogs. That is the volume of what you’re hearing outside right now. And I’m not disputing that you hear dogs, it’s not from this business. And those overhead doors don’t open. It’s actually policy now. They put those things there as to not have to open those at all. They can open them for safety reasons, security for the dogs reason, everything else. And the hinges only open when they come out and then it closes again. So any of that noise you’re currently hearing is from those pens down there and this is going to be, again, about a third of the capacity of what’s out there and more monitored because those dogs are just left out there 20 to 30 at a time with a staff or two. That’s the difference between this. And also, I think back in April, yes you may have been seeing overhead doors opening and closing. That’s when they shut the business down. They may have been moving in and out or whatever they were doing but it’s definitely not the noise of the current business. 

Ms. stated we didn’t move in until July.


Ms. Steven Basini stated they came in July.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked did you say that you complained to the town?

Mr. Bernard Calabro responded yes.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked do you guys know about that?

Mr. Michael Cunningham responded yes, we have a sworn in deposition from him.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but I think that is very recent.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I thought you said back then.

Mr. Bernard Calabro stated I did complain in April. I called. I didn’t come down. I didn’t sign any normal complaint. They said they would look into it and get back to me.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I guess my question, I was just questioning whether the noise levels were tested.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated typically when a complaint is received by our department, one of the code officials will go out there and inspect the site and monitor it for noise. We’re not sound experts so we get a range of where the noise ordinance comes into play. If it is excessive, our first step is to go talk with the property owners to see what’s causing the excessive sound. Barking, animal play, etc, is intermittent noise so it’s hard to really pin down, but if there is a consistent concern or complaint then it’s something that we should investigate, it should be addressed with this application as far as screening, planting, etc, in order to break noise, sound, etc. I think the applicant and Mr. Basini has outlined a variety of different protocols that this company follows. I think it would be wise for the Planning Board to request that be memorialized on the plan so that the outdoor pens are limited to five animals per pen, that it’s screened, that it’s shown on the plans for screening, is shown for fencing, etc. And then it is memorialized those overhead doors are not to be opened for this application. That’ll help reduce the ongoing concerns with noise and then we will take a look and see if there’s anything else we can do or recommend for the outdoor play sounds and noise and barking. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated one concern I have is that you were saying that it was the prior tenant when most of the noise was happening but she came before us and presented basically what you guys are presenting; this great picture about how much she cared about the animals and how they were going to be quiet, she was going to take care of the neighborhood and…

Ms. stated be careful.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated but wait a second, but now you’re sort of throwing her under the bus when really you guys are responsible for the property and if you were having a problem with somebody there, with one of your tenants who hadn’t put up the right kind of mitigation for the noise, somebody should have dealt with it at some point rather than wait for this to build up over all these months and now we finally hear about it just because someone new is moving in. 

Mr. Steven Basini stated firstly, I represent right now 2nd Chance and I do represent the owners when there’s an application that they’re putting forth like I did previously with the Planning Board approval, the site plan approval. The woman who came in here with night runs with K9 Kindergarten was assisting the creation of that business. The owner of the business was the owner of the building. He was assisted by her to get the approvals, to get the funding, to get the connections and then he took the business and ran with it in a little bit different direction than I think she was anticipating. Ultimately that was what I explained at the beginning in saying, I believe that’s what led to its failure. The owner was the operator so-to-speak of the building and maybe not enough care was given to that at the time and ultimately that failed and I think it’s in the right hands now. Yes, there was a speech I guess you’d say as you explained with the same ideology but ultimately it was run by someone else. In this case it’s run by the right people and I believe it’s in the right hands.
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated right, but still you may not – I don’t know if you knew about the noise back then but the point is, now you’re coming here and saying it was her fault or his fault, whoever’s fault from back then but there’s been an issue for a long time.

Mr. Steven Basini responded it was out of her hands, but yes. Well I don’t believe there were any official complaints that were put forth, honestly, to the owner. There were other site plan issues, as you know, cars and things like that, that were on the site that he was addressing. I don’t believe that there was ever a complaint that was issued to the owner. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think that’s the important thing. While the video may have been made in March or April and there may have been a call made to Code Enforcement, and I don’t know all the details, but I don’t believe that the owner would have been necessarily notified of that issue. They were notified recently.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I’m just saying, you don’t have to be notified to know if their dogs are barking a lot. They’re going to bother the neighborhood. Why does it have to get to this point when if they were having a problem last April – they can hear it. They don’t have to…

Mr. Steven Basini responded they’re inside. There was no pens outside.

Ms. stated Bob was an absentee owner. He was never on the property.

Mr. Steven Basini stated maybe that’s part of the problem. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated that wasn’t what we were told when approved this.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I think that’s the point of trying to create a protocol that the board can live with and adopt and approve so that we know their culture that they’ve been trying to explain. We know that if there’s permission or a proposal for three to five dogs per pen, that there’s going to be somebody who’s going to be able to monitor those pens so that if there is barking, if there is noise, they can take the dogs back inside. Memorializing on these plans, again as I stated before, not having those bay doors open for operation during business hours, etc, even for the board to consider limiting the total number of dogs permitted to be placed and kenneled in the facility to reduce sound.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I also think it’s important that Mr. Basini is here because K9 Kindergarten, which is approved, immediately next door to the area proposed has a lot of dogs outside. So maybe it needs to be looked at holistically between both K9 Kindergarten and this which is to the point that I believe the Planning Board wants to do a site inspection to go out there and take a look at it. 

Mr. Steven Basini stated I don’t necessarily represent K9 Kindergarten. I mean I don’t actually. Is that what you’re alluding to?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded but they’re a tenant so if there’s a problem with that tenant we would go to Mr. Lowe’s or who would probably go to you…

Mr. Steven Basini responded I think the directors, and thank you for saying that, because there really wasn’t a lot of language I don’t think put into the approval for the kennel. The site plan was overwriting everything at that point because it had been so long that it had been approved. There’s a lot of language: the water test results, things like that. There wasn’t much language about what the kennel needed to do. There was insinuation of sound barriers and things like that but I don’t think it was hard language and I think we’d be open to all of this. All of this, the directives that they give their company, I think is great to be putting it in language in there because I don’t think they’re going to straighten that so I would really welcome whatever you want to do to solidify that. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked I have a question because I’m a little confused on this. Mr. Calabro signed a sworn complaint on October 3rd, a month ago, the ladies here have said about open doors and noise and they say they never open the overhead doors so what’s going on?

Mr. Bernard Calabro responded the dog barking is still coming out of that building…

Mr. Robert Foley asked even with the doors closed?

Mr. Bernard Calabro stated with the doors closed. I can hear them with my doors and windows closed. Terrible. It’s unacceptable. Going back to April, I did – they gave me this guy Bob’s number to call him and I tried calling him. I guess he must live up in Hopewell somewhere and I couldn’t get in touch with the man. I was trying to call him up and complain to him. So instead he didn’t get back to me so I called the town, I don’t know if it was Code Enforcement, whoever, but I told them how bad this is and they were going to look into it. But before that K9 Kindergarten, we never had a real problem with them. They’ve been there for like 15 years. I think most of the time people are dropping their dog off in the morning and picking them up in the afternoon. Those dogs aren’t there overnight barking like they’re doing now. I’m telling you, these dogs bark all night. They’re left unattended all night long. Two o’clock in the morning these dogs decide to start barking, they start barking and you can’t leave your windows open in the summertime. You get a nice day, you can’t even leave your windows open any time of day or overnight, these dogs bark. There’s got to be a way to soundproof that building. I don’t know if it’s the noise echoes off out of the roof. I don’t know if you heard the video but it is really uncomfortable. I didn’t build my house down there 35 years ago to listen to that. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated no, it’s clear in your statement here. I’m just confused as to the K9 Kindergarten and then the new 2nd Chance Rescue.

Mr. Bernard Calabro stated and in April, when I did go there after I took the video I went down there to talk to whoever who was there, the door was open and I was able to talk to a young lady and says, well if you close the doors, and she said “well we can’t close the doors because it’s too hot for animals”. Which I’ve seen how bad it was for them. I felt bad for those dogs. There was about 25 dogs, not 60 dogs, but there was about 25 dogs in there which is probably about the same amount of dogs that they’ve got down there now. It’s not right. And at night, who do I call? Ten o’clock, 11 o’clock at night, who do I call?

Mr. Steven Basini stated can I make another comment?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes, we’re going to adjourn this hearing shortly. 

Mr. Steven Basini stated two items: one, again whatever conversation was had back then was with different owners. There was no ventilation system and it was very limited. Since then, the new owners, the operators have put in the new AC system in there, fully ventilated, fully air conditioned so they can leave the doors and windows closed and that’s the reason for that. Secondly, there are motion sensored and sound sensored cameras all throughout the facility, I expressed in my letter. All of the operators have access to those. They’re alerted if there’s anything triggered and the closest operator is only a block or two away and they come there immediately and settle the dogs down if there was ever an issue. I don’t know, maybe they can speak to that to see if there has been much of activity. There hasn’t been any. It’s closely monitored. They’re a block away. There’s a full air conditioning system. They don’t open the doors. I really believe that there was a time span there where it was aggressively noisy but it was not with these operators.
Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I do have a recommendation to address the noise complaint, I believe, and you can correct me if I’m wrong, K9 Kindergarten does not kennel overnight, it’s a daily operation.

Ms. stated we do kennel overnight. [inaudible] and they two staff members that sleep – they call it cage-free.

Mr. Steven Basini stated there’s two staff members that stay there at night. They call it a cage-free environment but there’s about 40 dogs there at night which is still almost twice as much of what 2nd Chance has there. 

Ms. Lisa Rose stated hi, how are you? My name is Lisa Rose, I’m a director at 2nd Chance Rescue. I just wanted to say a couple of things. The bay door, we never leave it open, ever. That’s just our policy so those are our rules and regulations that we do not violate or let our staff violate that. When we did take over the facility in July, the air conditioning unit was broken. That was the first thing we requested of our landlord and he put in a beautiful unit and there’s no reason for us to open those. And we do have the portable ACs in the unit, in the facility if they should ever breakdown because we love our dogs. And this yard, this play yard to us means everything. At nighttime I sleep with my phone near me. If there is a peep in the facility, my phone goes off. There hasn’t been. When we first opened, our first facility, I checked on the dogs multiple times a night just because I was nervous. It was our first time. And I was so taken back by how amazing these dogs were and this comes from the fact that we have one third of the dogs. We have 22 dogs there. We play them classical music at night so they’re relaxed. We are probably overstaffed. We have a staff member for each 7 dogs. So each day there’s 4 staff members plus a manager. There’s trainers that come in at least two to three times a month that train our staff so that they can address the dog’s needs, the barking, anything that can disrupt the dog’s normal activity and to be comfortable, we address that with our staff. All of our staff is also trained. We’re very mindful of our neighbors and I just ask that we don’t get painted with the same brush. We are a non-for-profit. When that business is open in April they were profit. Every dog that came in there, they made money. We don’t make money. We take dogs and we get them a better life and we make sure that they are good dogs, they’re happy dogs. We don’t make a dollar. When you have for-profit business, yes he did have 60 dogs there because 60 dogs meant he made more money. We don’t and we’re mindful and we’re trying our hardest. We invite anybody to come by and take a look at our facility. It is beautiful and we’re very proud of it. I hope that when you make your decision you don’t paint us with the same brush. We want the best for the animals and we try very, very hard. Any issues, we address them right away. Going forward, if there was any issues, we would love to address them. We would love to give our phone number to whoever. If they want to call, we can give our manager’s phone number or my phone number, or Jennifer Brooks, the President of the rescue if there’s any issues we will address them immediately. Again, I thank you for your time, I just hope that we’re not judged by a business. We’re not a business. We’re non-for-profit and we’re here for the animals. Thank you.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and you said there is someone in attendance 24 hours a day, overnight?

Ms. Lisa Rose responded we do not have somebody – we have somebody that lives – we have two key holders that live within a block of the facility…

Mr. Robert Foley asked so when you said you were sleeping with a cell phone…

Ms. Lisa Rose stated oh no, I have mine with me and our phones go off if there’s noise or anything, any noise, any movement, the facility our phones ring. It let’s us know right away. It is video but it picks up noise and it picks up movement. So whether it’s noise or movement, it will come straight to all of our phones and then we can access it immediately.

Mr. Robert Foley stated thank you for the better explanation for me. 

Mr. Peter Daly stated I think it was Mr. Calabro who suggested a stockade fence and I think everybody was assuming that was going to be used with the enclosure that you’re going to use for exercising but I think what he meant was to put a stockade fence at the top of the slope along Madeline which would possibly help attenuate some of the sound problem, create another sound barrier.

Mr. Steven Basini stated you’re talking Mr. Calabro suggested a stockade fence at the top of the hill?

Mr. Peter Daly responded yes, I think that’s what he was talking about earlier this evening when he was speaking to us, he was talking stockade fence and I think that’s what he meant. One way or the other, it would possibly solve the problem. Put a fence, some sort of sound barrier along Madeline to cut some of the sound.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but I think the board had decided is you were going to do a site inspection and the site inspection is not necessarily to hear the dogs barking because you’re going to be going out on a Sunday morning but the site inspection is to get an idea of where these runs are proposed in relation to the existing K9 Kindergarten run, and in relation to the top of the slope at Madeline and get an idea if fencing would work, if landscaping would work, get an idea of where this bulk head door is, all that sort of stuff. Simultaneously, I think you need to work with staff about these ideas of sound proofing and come up with a business plan that’s already been discussed today about how the dogs are walked, and how many dogs there are, get more information about that. So it’s a two step process: you’ve got to go out and take a look at it because that will frame your discussion about what site improvements you want made. And then I don’t know if we need to get K9 Kindergarten involved again too but that will allow you to see their outdoor run which apparently has a lot of dogs in their outdoor run. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated for a site visit I’d like to have both operations have their dogs outside as well as inside.

Mr. Steven Basini stated they can’t have them outside, there’s no pen.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated have a run…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated they’re proposing the run. K9 Kindergarten has a run. 

Mr. Steven Basini stated we don’t utilize that right now. It’s just a single dog walk now, one at a time.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated I’m still not clear whether this noise is generated from the dogs being outside, I know definitely from being inside that there’s…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but their dogs aren’t outside so it’s K9 Kindergarten’s dogs that are outside.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated I don’t think we can not include I guess exclude K9 Kindergarten from our concern.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I think from an enforcement issue, one of our first step, what I was going to recommend before, was coming up with a mechanism to evaluate the source of the noise. That’s what I was implying whether or not K9 Kindergarten was active during the night, and if there was dogs in that facility because we can easily put a sound monitor up and see if the noise is generated from dogs barking inside the site. We can measure the sound to see if it’s in violation of our town ordinance. If it is, the property owner, along with the tenant gets issued a violation. So that would bring Mr. Mosier back with K9 Kindergarten along with 2nd Chance as well. We have to find, and Steve and I can work off line try to find a way to isolate the noise, the source of the noise. 

Mr. Steven Basini stated we welcome you out to the site to even see the facility. I think it’s a big part of what was presented tonight and I wouldn’t want to limit you to just standing on the road. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated when I say site inspection, they’re going to look at the site, but when they did K9 Kindergarten 15 years ago, they were in the building, wandering around.

Mr. Steven Basini stated I want to make sure that that’s open as well. I agree. I have walked, when I went up to measure this to measure the AC unit and the shed and everything for the site plan, if you get close to those K9 Kindergarten pens, they erupt in barking. I don’t say that a squirrel or anything else outside wouldn’t have any less effect on that. I think really what you’re hearing is that but obviously proof will be in site visit. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but you’re the connection in a sense between the two facilities.

Mr. Steven Basini stated I understand that. I’m not shooting at the facility or anything like…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that just means that you can be part of the solution for both of the tenants.

Mr. Steven Basini stated I agree. Hopefully we can help resolve it for the betterment of this business and for this application, sure. Is there a schedule that you’ll be doing tonight?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded Sunday, December 2nd, nine in the morning.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I move that we adjourn the meeting, and my second motion would be to set a site inspection for 9 o’clock on December 2nd, Sunday morning to visit this property.

Mr. Steven Basini asked we won’t have time to really address anything for the next meeting. Is there any way to do that sooner or no?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that’s when they typically do their site inspection but you can meet with staff between now and then and revise the plans and have some discussion and then – but…

Mr. Steven Basini stated I won’t be able to submit anything though if I have the meeting and whatever input they have. I won’t be able to submit anything in time. That’s why I was asking but I understand your schedule.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated hopefully if you resolve any of the noise abatement issues, you could explain that to us at the site visit before we – between now and then.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated we’ll prepare a list of questions that will summarize the board’s concerns, comments, and then talk about the operations plan and means to isolate the source of the noise. 

With all in favor saying "aye". 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we will see you on December 2nd, Sunday.

Mr. Steven Basini stated thank you.



*



*



*
OLD BUSINESS:

PB 2018-13 a.
Application of A Rising Star Children’s Center, for the property of the First Hebrew Congregation, for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit for a licensed day care center in an existing building located on a 3.7 acre parcel of property at 52 Scenic Drive as shown on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “ARSA, LLC Site Location, Site Plan and Bulk Regulations” prepared by Mark Steven Olson, R.A. latest revision dated August 20, 2018.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated good evening.
Mr. Mark Olson stated good evening board. Just to bring everybody up-to-date, we’ve had several discussions with Engineering and Planning with regard to some comments on our plan. We have developed it a little bit further from the plan that you see. We’ve added the contours as was requested. We’ve added sight lines, again, as requested for the egress of the drive. We are indicating the pool area to be removed, filled in, grading restored. We’re also making some adjustments to the overall plan with regard to parking as it has resulted in some of the findings with regard to trees and slopes. I guess I can address the letter that was received by the town. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked you got a letter from an adjacent resident, correct?

Mr. Mark Olson responded from an adjacent resident, yes. I guess the only thing to address on this letter is the fact that there’s a cottage, I guess it is, that is referred to that exists behind their condo and beyond our project. It’s not on our property. We don’t have any control over it so it’s going to remain in its current location. We have no plans for it. We met with the arborist on site and we took a look at some trees. We are having the arborist locate those trees, give their recommendations as well on trees that we feel should come down because they are dead or dying. Other trees that they feel may be in the way of some of the parking, we may make some concessions on some of the parking. We have located 8 or 9 parking spaces in the rear of the building in an area that is not wooded that will allow us to maintain the 30 spaces and thereby reducing some of the, or removing some of those spaces in the front so that we can kind of trade that off and make sure that we’re not taking any more trees then we absolutely have to. I still maintain that we probably won’t be taking any live trees other than maybe one. We have two dead trees that I’m indicating on the plan presently that should come down because they are a liability and a risk.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but that’s one of the reasons we had Trevor out there is because some of the trees that you think may be able to be preserved and you want to preserve maybe when you lay out the parking, his recommendation will be that they can’t be preserved given impacts to the roots or something like that. So that’s one of the reasons we’re waiting. And then, what I was telling the applicant is I believe, the Planning Board wouldn’t mind seeing less parking if that led to some trees being preserved but we can’t really have that discussion until Trevor’s done and has laid it all out because I think your client wants enough parking so we understand that you need some parking but it will really – if Trevor says tree ‘x’ won’t survive with the two parking spaces next to it, then it’s up to the board to decide whether the tree can come down or whether the parking should be potentially eliminated.

Mr. Mark Olson responded correct.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated so that’s why we’re referring it back for now.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated yes, but I believe that we could potentially prepare a resolution for the next meeting, assuming everything continues to move along.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated first we need to get an extension though…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s correct. We close the public hearing and you have to give us the time extension or they have to vote now.

Mr. Mark Olson responded would it be tonight or would it be next month?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded next month is beyond the 62 days, yes.

Mr. Mark Olson stated I think they were prepared to obviously give you that extension. We would be very appreciative if the board and the consultants can prepare a resolution for next month. I understand that it might be a little bit tight. I’m not sure where the arborist is with their schedule but we will work diligently to get that information here in front of you.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this back to staff and to work out the final things with the applicant and prepare a resolution for the next meeting.

Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated once again, just confirm you extend the 62 day clock to allow the Planning Board’s decision to extend to the December meeting.

Mr. Mark Olson responded yes.

With all in favor saying "aye". 
Mr. Mark Olson stated thank you.

PB 2018-12  b.
Application of Dr. Ravikumar, for the property of Richard DiLorenzo, for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit for an office for a health care practitioner located in an existing building at 2 Ogden Avenue as shown on an 8 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan” prepared by Thomas M. Leigh, R.A., received by the Planning Division on September 19, 2018.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated good evening. 
Mr. Thomas Leigh stated good evening. We are in the process of revising the drawings, eliminating the Phase II portion which will be future endeavor down the road, we don’t know when. So the entire rear section of the property will not be developed at this time, only the area shown as Phase I which includes the front entrance and 5 to 7 parking spaces up front. We understand that there has been no negative declarations by any of the neighbors. Mr. DiLorenzo is here. He has informed me that the house across the street from the property, to the east, has been a dental office for approximately 40 years. So there are medical uses currently being used in the neighborhood. In the previous proposal we showed a surgery being designed for the basement; that is being removed altogether. We will only be using the first floor of the house. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so I think what we discussed is doing a site inspection and then as long as the drawings are revised, that there’s no reference to Phase II, the lines are removed, the parking is recalculated, that they do need a variance for lot size for the Zoning Board and the November Zoning Board meeting is next week so they can’t make that agenda but we’d like to get them started with the Zoning Board at their December meeting. I don’t think you have to take any action. I’m just letting you know that we may – we’ve been holding off sending them to the Zoning Board because of this issue of Phase I and Phase II and whether it was too intense. I think we think just going to Phase I with the first floor and the attic is a much more sufficient for the site and then you’ll get an idea in your site inspection and you can confirm or disagree with that, but we do think it can go to the Zoning Board, at least for them to analyze the fact that the lot is undersized with respect to the medical office special permit. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked and you also wanted some drawings regarding what they’re actually going to do as opposed to…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded and he’s working on them.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I also think it would be prudent, in the interim, there’s some question as to whether or not the property’s connected to the town sanitary system, for the applicant to contact the Water Department to do a flow test and a dye test to make sure that it is connected to the town sewer district, otherwise, it’ll confirm that it’s an on-site sanitary septic system. We want to make sure…

Mr. Thomas Leigh stated we were informed that it’s connected to the Conklin Park Sanitary System. 

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded has it been confirmed? Our records don’t indicate that a connection was ever made, that’s why I think a dye test would be prudent to contact the Water Division, have them perform it so that we can confirm that you’re on the sewer district and not on sanitary septic system.

Mr. DeLorenzo stated Conklin…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated we don’t have records of the connection being made so we want to make sure.

Mr. DeLorenzo stated [inaudible] 

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated oh you have it. Please provide it.

Mr. Thomas Leigh stated the apartment in the attic is not going to be used as a residential nature. It’ll be incorporated into the medical office. There is an existing rear existing stairwell out to the backyard which encroaches on the backyard more than 6 feet, basically because of the height of the stair. We’re going to turn that sideways so it’ll be within 4 feet of the rear wall and that’ll go out to the backyard to the new parking area.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated your next step would be, and you’ve already talked to Martin Rogers in the Code Enforcement office, but you would talk to him, you would show him your final drawing and then he would work with you if there were any other variances other than the lot area variance, like if a setback or the steps go into the setbacks…

Mr. Thomas Leigh stated that was part of the setback discussion he had with John Lentini that…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I just want to confirm that when he releases you to the Zoning Board that you’re applying for all the variances that you need and he’ll confirm that with you so you only have to go there once. I think the Zoning Board meeting is not until mid December so you could do the site inspection, talk about it at your December meeting and maybe schedule a public hearing for January because the Zoning Board won’t be done until December 19th at the earliest anyway.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and we can do the site inspection on the same day, the 2nd.  It works out.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated Madame Chair I’ll move that we refer this back and set a site inspection for December 2nd.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we will see you on the 2nd.

Mr. Thomas Leigh stated thank you. I will be there and I will park my car in the front yard where the proposed handicap space will be.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and try to get the revised drawings to us by the 20th of November at the latest.

PB 14-16    c.
Application of ASF Construction and Excavation Corporation for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit for a Specialty-Trade Contractor including a proposed 9,600 sq. ft. steel shop building, a 3,500 sq. ft. covered outdoor material storage structure and 10 parking spaces for property located at 37 Roa Hook Road as shown on a 6 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan for Andre Fernandes” prepared by Joseph C. Riina, P.E. latest revision dated September 12, 2018.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you want to discuss with us where you are with your project. 
Mr. Robert Corke stated good evening Madame Chair and the board. My name is Robert Corky, I’m the attorney for ASF. I’m here tonight with Joe Riina, the Engineer who designed the plan and with Ms. Annette Simoa, the owner and Vice President of ASF Construction. We applied for and received Specialty Trade Contractor status from the Zoning Board and we’re here today with a site plan for that space. I would defer to Mr. Riina for any questions you have regarding the site plan specifically. If you have any other questions regarding ASF and its use of the property, I’d be happy to try to answer those questions. 

Mr. Joseph Riina stated good evening, Joseph Riina, the principle site design consultant. Could you go to the existing site plan? 

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked is that page 2?

Mr. Joseph Riina responded it should be 2. There you go. So the site as it exists today it’s 2.38 acres. As you could see, it’s bordered by Annsville Creek on the east side of it and Route 9 on the west side. Roa Hook Road comes in north of the property but does not touch the property. Currently on this site, there’s one main building which is a residence and the main office for ASF Construction. It’s approximately 3,000 square feet and it’s got a patio area out back that they use for passive recreational purposes. Just to the south of that is another building, which is a covered area that has an outdoor grill, and kitchen, again it’s part of their recreational use of the property. There are other existing buildings on the site further to the north there. There are several sheds and outbuildings that as part of this site plan are going to be removed. Currently, the way you enter the site is off of Route 9 on the south west corner of the property and you exit out to the north out onto Roa Hook Road which brings you to the traffic light there, that Roa Hook Road and Route 9. If you want to go to the site plan, please. The intent of the site plan here is to create an environment on the property where all of the materials and uses on the site can be organized and kept either on a storage rack or within a building that is being proposed. So those two darker shaded areas of the proposed buildings: the larger building is 9,600 square feet, a third of which will be open canopy. That’ll be like an open work area so they can work on vehicles and what not, outdoors, and also storage will occur in that location. Inside the building you’re going to have a combination of storage of materials and storage of equipment that they would like to keep inside and keep out of the weather on a regular basis. The other building is going to be an open rack type building. It’s going to be roofed. It’s going to be a 3,500 square feet. As you can see, it’s right on the property line. As it is today, the property line, which is going to require a setback variance on that side on the Route 9 side, and on the north side of the property. As I said, all of the other outbuildings and storage areas are going to be removed from the site, so everything’s going to be contained in these two buildings. There’s an area north of the larger building along the Annsville Creek there, that’s going to be parking for some of the equipment and vehicles that are part of the operation. In addition to that, there’s going to be parking spaces provided for employees. They have a significant number of employees which go directly to job sites. Their main business, they’re in the concrete business. They do high-rises, a lot of concrete work for high-rises. Their crews all go directly to the job sites. These parking spaces are for the crew that’s working on the site, maintaining vehicles, doing fabrication work with steel, and what not that they need to accomplish that then need to be transported to their job sites. They’ll be getting delivery of material to the site, mostly reinforcing steel which is part of the concrete operation and the equipment that they have on the site, for the most part, would be used for the operation on site for moving material around and what not. At this point, we’ve made an application to the DEC, an article 15 permit to the DEC. It’s a joint application. We believe we’re close to being done with that aspect of it. We’ve responded to their comments. They didn’t have any significant comments on this so we believe we’re close to being done with that aspect of it. As part of what they’ve asked us to do, they’ve asked us to do some mitigation along Annsville Creek which we’ve provided some and it’s on one of the plan sheets here, but we’ve shown some planting and what not that they’ve asked for. In addition to that, where we’re showing the vehicles to be parked, they wanted some type of permanent barrier and trash screen to be constructed there which is also being proposed. I think that covers everything that would describe the site. We’ve made a formal submission addressing comments that came out of the Engineering Department some time back but we’ve addressed to comments and we’ve, at this point, are waiting to move on with the process.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked what kind of building is this going to be? Can you describe what it’s made out of…

Mr. Joseph Riina responded it’s going to be a pre-manufactured steel building, warehouse style building, something you would see in any industrial use or commercial yard. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked one story?

Mr. Joseph Riina responded it’ll be one, probably one and a half story because he needs some good head room on the inside for his equipment. Clear span, it will not be two floors. It’ll be just one level but…

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked how many feet high? I don’t see any details on this.

Mr. Joseph Riina responded I don’t know if I have an answer for you on that but I know he’s going to need it to be tall enough for his equipment to clear and so they can work on their equipment in there. I can come back with that answer for you when I get it.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated pertaining to the site, the Zoning Board did grant many years ago a special permit for a Specialty Trade Contractor. So these plans must be specific and clear as to the type of equipment that’s going to be stored in these buildings and in these storage units. That the only equipment being stored is only for the use of manufacturing of steel, rebar, etc, and not pavers, not general construction, heavy equipment pavers, which is what’s on the site now which is supposed to be off the site. This is just so the board and the public is aware an application to rectify existing violations. So we want to make sure that’s clear. I applaud you for reaching out to the DEC in getting that article 15 permit underway, storm water requirements, etc, that you’ve been addressing in your reviews and subsequent plan submissions but I just want to make sure that the board is aware that this is a site plan to remediate an existing open violation and not to just create a general contractor’s yard. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I don’t remember the date, but we were all on the site inspection there a while ago when you really got an idea of the contracting type nature of the facility and then this in more or less in response to the site visit and the review memos as this is the first revision of the drawings that are coming back to us. I think staff needs to review these more. The big issue is that you haven’t resolved the ownership issue of those other parcels yet.

Mr. Robert Corke responded there is a parcel between the ASF property and Route 9. It goes from the ASF property up to the boundary of Route 9. We’ve been able to determine that the county abandoned or signed off on abandoning that property and a resolution in 1964. I can provide that resolution to you. We’ve been asked to have an updated resolution approved. There was a change of attorneys in the county office and it didn’t go from one to the other but what we were able to determine was that that reverter is now going to be released to the property owners and that will give us the property from the ASF boundary line right up to the end of Route 9. I don’t know that the particular survey was included with your package but that’s noted by Badey & Watson on their last survey that they did for us. There’s another parcel of land. I call that my mystery parcel. I’ve heard quite a few stories about it. We have both Badey & Watson and New York Title trying to search it out, and that’s the parcel of land that would be to the north…

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked over here?

Mr. Robert Corke responded yes. I was told that it doesn’t show up on your town map with any ownership by one of the inspectors. Actually, in the memo that was provided by the Zoning Board to us when they approved the special usage permit, they had an aerial photo, which was interesting, I have it with me, I don’t know if it’s part of what you have, and you see all the boundary lines and there’s no line on the property. It’s there and I’ve heard all sorts of stories about it. We are actively pursuing that because it most assuredly is to the benefit of our client. If I can, I’m going to give you my copy so you know what I’m saying. Is that all right?
Mr. Chris Kehoe asked is it this one?

Mr. Robert Corke responded yes. 

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated we have that.

Mr. Robert Corke stated if you look at that, you see the lines for the ASF property. You see the line for the property across the street. You see the line for the, I get my directions on this one wrong, the west side of 9 and you’ll see there also there’s a big marked out reverter, that’s part of the reverter on the other side of the street that we’re resolving at the same time. That property was released because, for whatever reason, no one went forward when the property was released by the county legislators in ’64 and recorded new deeds, so I’m in that process now. But the parcel I’m talking about is that parcel just north I guess between the ASF property and Roa Hook and what’s indicated as a property there. Am I clear with you seeing what I’m saying on the picture?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded but ultimately, if you take ownership of one or both of those then you’d be submitting a new site plan.

Mr. Robert Corke stated well we may not need the variances.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated right, but maybe some of this stuff that is already on those properties could stay on those properties. It may lead to a redesign of the site plan.

Mr. Robert Corke stated I’m not sure about that. I think the things that are on the properties are just about falling down pieces and it would require us to get demolition permits to get rid of them. I don’t think they’re structures of any significance. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated let me just say it a different way. I guess those properties just need to be cleared up before the Planning Board can approve the site plan. 

Mr. Robert Corke stated I don’t know that’s correct or not. I don’t believe that’s correct.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated we can’t show on the site plan for approval encroachment into that Route 9 right-of-way, which is what you’re showing now with the parking. We can’t show any potential connection to the northern parcel or storage on the northern parcel because that is not lands owned by your client…

Mr. Robert Corke stated I’m sorry, for this site plan, I don’t think we need, for this site plan…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated it’s not just for the site plan it’s to clear up the violation because the current…

Mr. Robert Corke responded that’s a separate issue.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated well no, this is clearing up the violations with this application. 

Mr. Robert Corke responded yes, that has to be cleared up.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated you cannot show encroachment on a property not owned by ASF.

Mr. Robert Corke stated you’re absolutely correct about that, no question about that at all. The cleaning up of those violations is separate from the resolution of title to those two parcels.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated and I do just have one other question that Mr. Riina may be able to answer, this proposed site plan is only going to have one entrance in and one entrance out. It’s no longer going to loop to Roa Hook as it’s currently constituted?

Mr. Joseph Riina stated that’s correct.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated because that’s what this shows, right?

Mr. Joseph Riina responded right, that’s the way it exists now and they’re going to maintain that. 

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded and the single residence on site you’re proposing with this approval to keep it as a single family.

Mr. Joseph Riina responded it’s going to remain a residence and the office for the construction business. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked so the additional properties that you’re talking about have nothing to do with what we’re approving at this point is what you’re saying right? 

Mr. Robert Corke responded I don’t want to jump that far, but they are very helpful to us. I believe the site plan can be approved as is if that weren’t to happen, but I believe we’ll probably need a variance on setback variance for one of the buildings, but we will clean up the violations. That’s not the question. We would like…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked you would have to come back before us though if you want to do any kinds of improvements with changes to these additional properties?

Mr. Robert Corke responded we’re really not contemplating any work on those parcels. They would be there. They would be owned by the client for whatever.

Mr. Michael Cunningham stated just so the board knows and everyone in the audience is aware that I’m working with Mr. Corke right now on some violations and they’ve paid a fee to us and we’re trying to work out these violations. So the ownership that really plays in is that if somehow we can clear it all up in one setting before the Planning Board, that’s what we’re really looking to do now. But I think the issues could be split but then we still have the building code violations. 

Mr. Robert Corke stated I have no argument with that Mr. Cunningham. 

Mr. Michael Cunningham stated and then I’ve got to continue to prosecute them, so the goal here is to get everything done by the Planning Board. 

Mr. Robert Corke stated yes, absolutely. It’s a remarkable improvement to this property from the time they purchased the property and I think that’s an important thing to keep in mind. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated before I make a motion, I just have a quick question about your EAF form, maybe Chris could help. Number 12, page 7 of 10. Isn’t this a CEA in a critical environmental area? Isn’t it adjacent to…

Mr. Joseph Riina responded yes.

Mr. Robert Foley stated you answered no.

Mr. Joseph Riina responded I will check into that. It was my belief that we are but I will check into that. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated page 7 of 10 in the EAF. I make a motion that we refer this back.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Joseph Riina and Robert Corke stated thank you.

PB 1-11      d.
Application of  NDCG, LLC, for the property of Croton Realty & Development Inc. for Final Plat Approval for a 27 lot major subdivision with 4 open space parcels of a 35.9 acre parcel of property located on the east side of Croton Avenue, approximately 400 feet north of Furnace Dock Road as shown on a plat entitled “Subdivision Plat - Hanover Estates prepared for NDCG, LLC” prepared by William H. Free Jr., PLS dated October 24, 2018 and on a 20 page set of improvement drawings entitled “Subdivision Known as Hanover Estates” prepared by Timothy L. Cronin III, P.E. latest revision dated October 24, 2018.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Loretta, it’s already been pulled. You already took the motion at the beginning of the meeting.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we are taking this one off. I did tell you that at the beginning. I’m sorry about that. We can move on.



*



*



*
NEW BUSINESS:

PB 2018-23 a.
Application of Mahlab Family Realty, LLC for Preliminary Plat approval and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal permits for a proposed 3 lot major subdivision of an approximately 25 acre parcel of property located on the south side of Teatown Road, approximately 5,000 feet east of Quaker Ridge Road, as shown on a 2 page set of drawings entitled “Preliminary Plat” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. dated October 18, 2018.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is new business. You want to discuss this a little bit?
Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded good evening. I know that this is the first time you see this and I know that your procedure is to send it back to staff for reviews. I’m here if you have any questions about it. It’s essentially a three-lot subdivision. There are no road improvements needed. It’s not a common road. It’s three separate lots. There’s no construction planned. There’s no intention of building any homes in the near future. Each lot essentially stands on its own. We see it as essentially just three lots, two dividing lines between – to create three lots. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked there’s no home there now?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded no, it’s woods. There are wetlands on the property. We don’t need a wetlands permit as far as I can tell. There’s some steep slopes on the property in the back. I don’t believe we need any steep slopes permits. I believe each lot conforms to the zoning. Certainly when it goes back to staff they can check all that but that’s basically…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked so you’re just dividing it at this point?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded right. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we’ll have to have a discussion.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated plate waiver for the trees which I think you kind of just dropped in there. I was just confused because if you’re not planning to cut down any trees then why are you applying for a tree removal permit?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded well we always apply for a tree removal permit, typically.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked but you’re not even building anything, are you?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded that’s right, typically we have a disturbance area that they like to show on the plan and typically we do identify 4 inch trees and up in the woods. We typically do that. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked but wouldn’t you do that if you’re building?

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated that’s my confusion, right.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded typically we do it, believe it or not, when we’re not even building.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated well, but I’m sure it will turn into a debate.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it never turns into a debate with Ralph. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated our position is that if an application is made for subdivision, it’s got to be proved out to the subdivision can be built which means you need all of the information, tree removals, you need a tree inventory, you need the wetlands delineated. Even if the argument, which we don’t agree with, as well you can do all that later when we build the houses as part of your review of the subdivision application which will be put into our review memos. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded to expand upon that a little bit, if we go out and we locate all these trees 4 inches and up and we don’t build a house there for 20 years, those 4 inch trees are now 8 inch trees or…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and then when you build the house in 20 years, you’d have to relocate them. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated come back anyway.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated not if we do it on the subdivision map, on the improvement plan. We have the tree permit.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the tree permits do not last forever.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded they don’t? Well then we don’t need to apply for one now.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the assumption is you’re applying for subdivision. You’re going to get three lots approved and you’re going to build a house. 

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated the board needs to be able to fully evaluate all the environmental impacts associated with the subdivision regardless of whether or not you intend to build within the next calendar year or 10 years. So I still need to know the trees, wetlands…

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated that’s why we always locate the trees before we even want to build anything. I agree with that but what I’m asking for…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated the tree permit expires, so is wetlands, steep slopes, etc.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated what I’m asking for is instead of having to locate every 4 inch tree on a piece of property we don’t plan on building on there…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you have to located them within 50 feet of areas proposed for disturbance.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I agree with that. If the board is not willing to listen to that logic, then we’ll locate every 4 inch tree. We’re not saying we don’t want to do it. It just seems like a lot of work for no reason that’s all. Or it could be work that could be done when actually a building permit is applied for. That would make more sense wouldn’t it, to make the tree…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the Planning Board has to decide if the proposed house location, which you’re showing requires the cutting down of 15 specimen trees and then they would suggest that the house go somewhere else even though they’re not necessarily issuing the building permit, they’re issuing, generally speaking, where that house is going to be built. 
Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated all I’m asking for is instead of locating 4 inch trees that maybe there’d be some concession that we don’t have to – there’s thousands of trees in there. It just seems like a lot of work.
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated not within the 50 feet of disturbance.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated if within 50 feet of the disturbance there’s a tremendous number of 4 inch trees in that area. What we’re doing it for if we’re not going to build a house? I’m just asking for some consideration…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the Board has been involved in projects where there are massive spreadsheets associated with the plans, showing all trees greater than 4 inches. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated in my logical way of thinking, you would do that when they apply for a building permit because the houses are schematic. Who knows if they’ll even be in that location.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated if they’re in that location and you apply for a building permit within a reasonable amount of time, a year, a year and a half, you do not need a new tree removal permit. If you wait 4, or 5, or 6 years, you need a new tree removal permit. If when you come back to the Building Department the house is not proposed in the same location generally that the Planning Board approved it then the Building Department has to issue you a tree removal permit.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated and all I’m asking for is some consideration that we don’t locate 4 inch trees, that’s all.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated well the code says 4 inch trees.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I know but the board could change that. 

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated that’s not variable.

Mr. Peter Siracusa stated my name is Peter Siracusa and I live on Teatown Road. My question is; you’re proposing three building lots. How much road frontage do you have? Will each house have their own driveway off of Teatown Road? That’s my question.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated each house is zoning compliant. Each lot has its own driveway on Teatown Road. Each lot has its own frontage on Teatown Road. 

Ms. Kathy St. Leger stated members of the board I’m Kathy St. Leger I live at 158 Teatown Road. I’ve been on Teatown for 33 years. I’m in the house that was built in 1951 that my in-laws had built, bought. My husband grew up in the house. I’ve raised three children. I’m not even a quarter mile down from where this proposed property is. I’m really concerned. There’s a lot that’s going on with the impact: environmentally, traffic. Teatown is considered one of the worst roads in the county. The buses don’t come through. For 14 years I went down to Spring Valley by Teatown to drop off my kids, pick them up from the bus which is fine. There’s a lot more traffic on the road from all the houses and people that have been moving in throughout the years that I’ve been there. It’s very concerning. I have coyotes coming up my driveway. I was walking to my garage the other day, I had a fisher cat walking through chasing me into my garage. My neighbor tells me I have a fox living behind my garage in the woodlot. All of this environmentally…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madam, we’re in the top of the first inning here…

Ms. Kathy St. Leger stated I’m concerned…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you’ll have your opportunity when it gets to the point of a public hearing. 

Ms. Kathy St. Leger asked but how does it get that far?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you’ve made an application. It hasn’t gone anywhere. It’s the first time we hear about it.

Ms. Kathy St. Leger stated I’m concerned about the application in general.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and your concerns will be heard when we get a little further down the road in the process. The process started 5 minutes ago.

Ms. Kathy St. Leger stated I’m scared. Let me put it that way.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but there’s a long way to go here. 

Ms. Kathy St. Leger stated I guess we’re in for the long run.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated these applications can last 6 months to 6 years.

Ms. Kathy St. Leger stated well about 20 years ago I was in the same room 20-25 years ago, my kids were much younger and we were fighting Teatown because they wanted to have the things right on Teatown Road with all of their plant sales and everything…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and there’s public hearings and meetings about that and there will be numerous public hearings and meetings about this. You know as much about this application as the 6 Planning Board members do. 

Ms. Kathy St. Leger stated I guess I just want to say there’s a lot of concern going on here. That’s all I wanted to say. Thank you.

Mr. Robert Foley stated we’re going to look at it very carefully. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I know it’s not a public hearing but could you identify yourself? What’s your name and address?

Mr. Robert Foley responded she did Ralph.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated 158 okay I’m sorry. I know it’s not a public hearing I just want to see how far away she lives from this site.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the Planning Board members were given in their packets tonight a letter from the Westchester Land Trust. You’ll get that letter tomorrow. It’s a general letter regarding preservation of the property and then issues with respect to a grant application that’s been made in the past and some comments about the environmental sensitivity of the project. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco asked when would you guys have your memo on this project? At the next meeting, December?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded our goal is to do them as quickly as possibly but then that means it needs to get back to you and you need to revise it in time by November 20th. So we can’t guarantee that that’s going to happen.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco asked will I receive your memo at the next meeting?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded we’ll try to get it ahead of the next meeting Ralph and if we can send advance comments we will. It shouldn’t take too long, probably within a week to 10 days. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked one other question quickly too. I know you’re claiming that there’s no wetland impact and maybe these are easily definable bodies of water but the wetland buffer line was set by you based on measuring off of the water or was it delineated by a wetland consultant?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded if you look carefully at our application, it was delineated.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked by who?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded I think it was Bruce Donohue.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked was that done through the town or independently by the property owners?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded independently.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated because then that would need to be verified and that will end up in our review memo.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco asked is that something that you and I can start?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded you have to request that, yes.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated don’t expect many changes as the well defined lake. So it should be within a few feet but we’ll re-verify.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this to staff for their review memo.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated thank you. Good night.

PB 2018-24 b.
Application of Margie Ferris and Melissa Wassil, for the property of B.C. Development Co., LLC, for Planning Board approval for a change of use of a tenant space from a Tae Kwon Do facility to the Zen Zone Sensory Gym located at the Cortlandt Business Park, 2055 Albany Post Road, as described in a packet dated October 24, 2018 from Margie Ferris and Melissa Wassil (see prior PB’s 20-03, 13-04, 2018-3 & 2018-4).

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we approve Resolution 44-18. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I actually wanted them to spend about two minutes discussing what they do. Thank you.

Ms. Melissa Wassil stated good evening. My name’s Melissa Wassil. I’m a resident, a local resident. I’m an educator. I’ve been the Director of Sunset Nursery School in Montrose for the past 13 years. I’m the co-founder of the Zen Zone Sensory Gym with my partner.
Ms. Margie Ferris stated I’m Margie Ferris. I’ve been a Speech Language Pathologist for the last 25 years with kids. I work with Melissa and we founded Zen Zone Sensory Gym.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked now, just briefly, what is it that you do as part of a sensory gym? 

Ms. Melissa Wassil responded sensory is basically your five senses and there are some children who have a hard time processing all of those sensories: children who are on the spectrum, children who have special needs. Our gym is going to be open for all children, including children who have special needs. There’s a lot of facilities for children that exist now that have birthday parties and facilities to go to for open space. And for children who have these special sensory needs, those facilities don’t work for them. So this facility is going to specifically be open for all children, especially these children who have sensory needs. It will be an open space. We will have special programs teaching social skills. There’ll be special art classes that are therapeutic for these children, but we will also service the entire community. We work specifically with Hendrick Hudson and their special education department. The closest facility like this is in Hawthorne. There are children that go for a whole school year and don’t have access to these type of facilities. So there’s a need in this area. About a year ago we set out to try to have this open space where there could be birthday parties, music lessons, and things like that, for all children, but it would be focusing on helping children who have these special needs to have this safe, quiet place to go where they would feel wanted. We’re going to encompass the whole community. There’ll be some kind of training involved. We have therapists that will come in and work specifically with the children.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so the therapists, the ones working with the children…

Ms. Melissa Wassil responded Margie is a therapist, so she will be one of the people working with…

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked but you’re one of others who will also be there.

Ms. Margie Ferris responded yes, we’ll be looking to have physical occupational and speech therapy on site but our main hours will be open gym times. It’s like an indoor playground but because of our backgrounds it’s going to include special needs kids where often they’re excluded: birthday parties. We know how to work with these kids where they’re often not invited to a birthday party or they can’t handle the regular indoor playground kind of scene. We know what kind of equipment works to help them calm and focus and what kind of classes help them develop. It’s a sensory gym for all kids.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I understand and I guess I would be very amenable to that kind of a situation for these children but what I am also concerned about is this child who comes to the gym who may feel, who’s not on the spectrum for example but who may feel all the attention is geared to one type of child and they’re sort of lost because those children don’t necessarily interact with the kids who are not. We can talk more about that as this progresses but I might feel even more comfortable if this was specifically targeted to a specific child so that the other children who do come who don’t have those same needs would not feel kind of out of place in this space that they want to come and enjoy. Anyway, we can continue to talk about that at another time.

Ms. Melissa Wassil asked can I speak to that a little bit?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded sure.

Ms. Melissa Wassil stated just running Sunset Nursery School we are considered a special education nursery school so our goal is mainstreaming typical learners with non-typical learners and the idea is tolerance, acceptance on both parts. It’s actually been working for 13 years now at Sunset. We have several school districts that send their children who have special needs to our school because we’ve kind of figured out a wonderful balance on blending all of the children together. I think we have a pretty good balance and I think that’s what we’re trying to do. We’re trying to promote tolerance, integration is a better word than acceptance but that’s our goal, and education for the community parents. We want to bring the whole community together even older children who are on the spectrum for volunteer purposes. We’re looking at a broad community type of feel.

Mr. Robert Foley asked does the spectrum include autistic children?

Ms. Melissa Wassil responded yes it does. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we approve Resolution 44-18.

Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and just on the question, the applicants know, they’re working with an architect. There’ll be building permit issues with respect to changing some of the inside of the building and we don’t envision that the parking will be any problem. You remember the drumming school and the yoga school; there’s plenty of spaces there.

With all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so you’ll get a copy of the resolution in the mail.

Ms. Melissa Wassil stated thank you very much. Have a good evening.

PB 2018-25 c.
Application of Springvale Apartment Company for Amended Site Development approval for proposed enhancements to their property including a proposed gazebo, improvements to the primary entrance, increasing the size of small decks on four (4) buildings, the conversion of a vacant barn loft into a 1-bedroom apartment and a proposed 300 sq. ft. addition to building 31 as described in a packet dated October 24, 2018 from Fred Tresgallo, Property Manager (see prior PB 1-12).

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated these are all relatively minor. I think since five of them came in at once we wanted them to all be organized in the packet but I don’t believe they’re too complicated. There are building permit issues associated with them so a resolution for next…
Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I think a resolution would be fine. This is really an opportunity for the board to understand the four minor projects that are being kind of lumped together. Most of them, as Chris alluded to, are building permits but there is an outdoor gazebo I believe is one and also a new entrance signage which are site planning items that we wanted to make the board aware of.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that is something that you may want to take back to Fred. I know it’s somewhat of a chicken and an egg. They didn’t want to spend a lot of money on going to a landscape architect to fully design the front entrance but then I sort of told Fred that’s hard for the Planning Board to approve something if they don’t really know what it looks like. There is a real generalized sketch in your packet. If that can be perfected a little bit between now and the December meeting, if you have a landscape company that you’re working with to provide more details on that would be helpful. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated and you can send that to CAC.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked the entry?

Mr. Michael Preziosi asked the signage?

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder responded the landscape plan.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated when they say landscape plan, I think it’s mainly hardscape, like a new – but if there’s plantings associated with it, I can send it to them.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated Madame Chair I move we refer this application back to staff.

Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and for a resolution for next meeting.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated and prepare a resolution for next meeting.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 
PB 2018-26 d.
Application of  New York SMSA Limited Partnership, d/b/a Verizon Wireless, for the property of the Cortlandt Engine Company, Inc., for a proposed public utility personal wireless facility on the rooftop of the existing Montrose Fire Department building located at 2143 Albany Post Road as shown on a 9 page set of drawings entitled “Zoning Drawings” prepared by Peter J. Tardy, P.E. dated October 10, 2018.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated good evening.
Mr. Michael Sheridan stated good evening. My name is Michael Sheridan. I’m an associate with Snyder & Snyder LLP, the attorneys for SMSA Limited Partnership, d/b/a Verizon Wireless. As was just indicated, Verizon Wireless is looking to co-locate a wireless facility on the fire station at 2143 Albany Post Road. It’s a small facility consisting of equipment located at the base of the building and three antennas and a stealth enclosure on the roof of the building. We are in receipt of a memo from Mr. Preziosi. There are several comments on the memo. Most of them, it seems to me, will easily be addressed. There’s a couple of questions I do have for Mr. Preziosi which I don’t know if you want to discuss it tonight or schedule a time tomorrow or early next week to discuss it, but at this point, we’re looking to schedule the public hearing and to the extent necessary which I believe it is, I’ll make sure that under the GML239-M that it’s referred to the county. I don’t know if it’s been referred at this point. I know that one of the requirements of the code is to send out…

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked you sent it to adjacent use?

Mr. Michael Sheridan responded we did. We sent it there. We haven’t received anything back.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I got a notification from the county already that – because it always makes me nervous because I know the code says that you guys can do it but yes I got response from the county.

Mr. Michael Sheridan stated if you could send me a copy of that; that would be great. At this point, I’m willing to answer any questions and request that a public hearing be scheduled for the next available meeting.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you’re becoming a very familiar face. Is there anybody here who has a question?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded it’s really up to Mike if it’s ready for a public hearing or if you want more discussion.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I think a meeting with staff is the next step I feel. There is a question as to whether or not this is a co-location or a new cell tower. I know the term small wireless facility has been thrown out and an existing structure but there’s a little discrepancy as to whether or not we’ll be considering this a co-location or a new cell tower itself so the first step would be a staff meeting and then refer it back.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and when it does get back on the agenda, when you do schedule a public hearing, depending on how it’s going that the public hearing could be closed and a resolution could be adopted the same night. So it’s not a question of losing any time. 

Mr. Michael Sheridan stated if it’s not a question of losing any time, I don’t have an issue. Certainly I would think that if we did schedule the public hearing, it could be started and adjourned if everything is not addressed at that point.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but I do think you might want some revisions.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated there’s some revisions to the plan that are required. There needs to be some comments addressed pertaining to the ERF analysis that was submitted. Like I said before, the comments on whether or not this is a new cell tower versus a co-location has to be vetted between our legal minds and our staff minds.

Mr. Michael Sheridan stated I think in one sense, I think we did apply as if it were a new tower. The code doesn’t really distinguish between new towers and small cells unfortunately at this point, so I think we supplied everything necessary as if it were a new tower despite the fact that it’s being co-located on a building. Co-location, I admit, in your code there’s a definition. One of the definitions in the FCC is co-location as far as the shot clock goes, which there’s two different times: there’s a 90 day and a 150 day and that’s something we’ll be addressing in response to your comments as well, and that’s where the co-location applies it, it’s a 90 day time limit that’s required under the shot clock because it’s co-located on an existing structure. As far as co-located with our antennas on the building, that’s a discussion we can definitely have.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but I think given those discussions we’d prefer not to go right to a public hearing.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated as Chris alluded to, it would be referred back, you schedule a public hearing potentially in December for January and we can conceivably close at the same meeting so there wouldn’t be a loss of time in that manner.

Mr. Michael Cunningham asked in your response, can you find a definition that says when you locate on a building it’s considered a co-location?
Mr. Michael Sheridan responded yes, certainly but that’s in connection with the shot clock.

Mr. Michael Cunningham stated yes, yes, just so we’re all clear.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated we’ll be in touch to schedule a meeting, perhaps in the next week or so.

Mr. Michael Sheridan stated that would be great. Get these comments addressed, and move on.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we refer this back.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Michael Sheridan stated thank you. I do have one more comment. It appears that someone left a briefcase in the back of the room.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked is it ticking?

*



*



*
ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we are adjourn. 
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Next Meeting: TUESDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2018

I, SYLVIE MADDALENA, a Transcriptionist for the Town of Cortlandt as a subcontractor, do hereby certify that the information provided in this document is an accurate representation of the Planning Board meeting minutes to the best of my ability.
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